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 Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting of Scanfil 
Oyj will be held on Thursday 26 March 
2009 at 2.00 p.m. in company’s main 
office, at the address Yritystie 6, Sievi, 
Finland. The shareholders’ meeting will 
examine the matters referred to in the 
summons to the meeting published 
in accordance with the Articles of As-
sociation, which are also presented in 
a stock market announcement and on 
the company’s web site www.scanfil.
com. 
Eligibility to attend the meeting shall 
be enjoyed by shareholders who were 
entered by 16 March 2009 at the
latest as shareholders in the register of 
Scanfil Oyj’s shareholders kept by the 
Euroclear Finland Oy (Finnish Central 
Securities Depository). In order to 
be able to attend the Annual General 
Meeting, shareholders shall register 
with the company by 4 p.m. on 23 March 
2009 at the latest, either in writing to 
the address Scanfil Oyj, Yritystie 6, 
85410 Sievi, Finland, by telephone, on 
+ 358 – 8 – 4882 111, to Ms Anne-Maarit 
Kainulainen or by e-mail anne-maarit.
kainulainen@scanfil.com. 

When registering by post, the letter 
shall have arrived before the end of 
the registration period. Any powers of 
attorney should be sent in connection 
with prior registration.

Dividend distribution policy
The company’s objective is to pay divi-
dend regularly each year. The level of 
dividends paid and the date of payment 
are affected, inter alia, by the Group’s 
result, financial position, need for cap-
ital and other possible factors. The aim 
is to distribute approx. a third of the 
Group’s annual result to shareholders in 
the form of dividend.

Payment of dividend 
The Board of Directors proposes to the 
Annual General Meeting that, accord-
ing to the dividend policy, a dividend 
of EUR 0.09 per share be paid based on 
the annual result of the financial year 
ending on 31 December 2008, plus an 
additional dividend of EUR 0.03 per 
share on the market.
The record date for payment of divi-
dend shall be 31 March 2009 and the 
date of payment of dividend 7 April 
2009. Dividend shall be paid to share-
holders who on the record date are 
entered in the register of the com-
pany’s shareholders kept by the Finnish 
Central Securities Depository.

Financial information
In 2009, Scanfil Oyj will be publishing 
the following financial reviews

The financial reviews will be appearing 
in Finnish and English, and be

published on the company’s web site 
at www.scanfil.com. The publications 
can also be ordered from the address 
Scanfil Oyj, Yritystie 6, 85410 Sievi,
Finland and by telephone on
+ 358 – 8 – 4882 111. 

Financial statement bulletin
12 February 2009 
Annual report week 12/2009
Interim Report for January–March
23 April 2009 
Interim Report for January–June
4 August 2009 
Interim Report for January–September 
23 October 2009

Register of shareholders
Shareholders are requested to give no-
tice of changes of name and address to 
the bank, bankers or Euroclear Finland 
Oy (Finnish Central Securities Deposi-
tory), which, as the account operator 
chosen by each shareholder, admin-
isters the shareholder’s book-entry 
securities account

For shareholders
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General
Scanfil plc
Based on the authorisation by the 
Annual General Meeting on 3 April 
2008, Scanfil plc’s Board of Directors 
approved the business transfer 
agreement on 30 April 2008 and 
implemented the transfer on 1 May 
2008. The company was split into an 
investment company, Scanfil plc, and a 
subgroup called Scanfil EMS Oy, which 
engages in contract manufacturing. 
The objective of the split is to grow 
the contract manufacturing business 
by acquisitions and to invest the 
accumulated funds into new business 
areas. Scanfil plc owns 100% of Scanfil 
EMS Oy shares.

Scanfil plc will focus on its owner-
ship role in contract manufacturing 
and also in other, new, sectors. The 
aim is to invest the company assets 
profitably in companies that operate 
in the chosen sectors. Scanfil will try to 
acquire shares of ownership allowing 
active say in the operation of the com-
panies. In addition, the company can 
own shares and invest assets in other 
targets. During the review period, 
Scanfil plc has mainly invested cash in 
hand. No strategic investments were 
made during the period.

During the last quarter, the com-
pany signed a rental agreement on 
part of the Oulu plant facilities. Nokia 
Siemens Networks rented over 6,700 
square metres of the facilities. Scanfil 
will continue to actively search for 
ways to rent out the remaining more 
than 11,000 square metres or to sell 
the facilities.

Scanfil EMS Oy will be developed as 
a strong Nordic operator, and the con-
tract manufacturing business will be 
organised in a way that helps enhance 
the company’s global market position. 
Scanfil EMS Oy is a competitive and 
profitable company in its sector. The 
new company structure simplifies pos-
sible future company acquisitions.

In the business transfer, all contract 
manufacturing assets, liabilities and 
provisions were transferred to Scanfil 
EMS Oy in accordance to the provisions 
of the Finnish Act on Trade Tax. This 
made the Scanfil EMS Oy balance sheet 
too strong for effective equity man-
agement. The objective is to return 

equity to parent company Scanfil plc 
by decreasing the reserve for invested 
non-restricted equity so that the 
equity ratio of Scanfil EMS Oy will be 
approximately 40%. 

Scanfil EMS Subgroup
During the review period, Scanfil has 
maintained its focus on improving the 
efficiency and quality of processes by 
utilising new technologies and 
improving personnel competence 
levels. Having developed our partner 
network further, Scanfil EMS can now 
offer more comprehensive design 
services and testing system planning 
and manufacturing services. We can 
deepen our cooperation with our 
customers and get involved in their 
production projects at an earlier stage. 
Development of production activities 
has focused on cost management, 
flexible and effective production 
processes and comprehensive supply 
chain management.

The global financial crisis that 
started at the end of 2008 and the 
subsequent increase in financial uncer-
tainty decreased the demand in both 
the telecommunications and the in-
dustrial electronics sectors during the 
last quarter. The uncertainties related 
to the financial market and future de-
velopment caused Scanfil’s customer 
sectors to delay investment decisions 
and slowed down the growth of the 
market.

The active focus on industrial elec-
tronics customers to balance sales has 
paid off, and the share of industrial 
electronics in total sales has increased 
from the previous year. We have ex-
panded our customer base and signed 
a new collaboration agreement with 
The Switch last autumn. The Switch 
manufactures power converters for 
wind power generation. Global deci-
sions related to environmental issues 
and energy conservation will open up 
new opportunities for Scanfil in the 
industrial electronics sector. Telecom-
munications customers accounted for 
about 62 (68)% and industrial electron-
ics customers for about 38 (32)% of the 
turnover.

The slight decline in the Group’s 
turnover resulted from overall demand 

in the market for telecommunications 
products being lower than in 2007. 
Product structure changes imple-
mented by one of the customers have 
affected especially the sales of the Chi-
nese units. An expansion of more than 
5,400 square metres was launched at 
the Hangzhou subsidiary in the third 
quarter. The objective of the expansion 
is to increase the production capacity 
of mechanical products in particular.

Financial performance
The Group’s turnover in 2008 was EUR 
218,9 (224,6) million, showing a de-
crease of 2.6% over the previous year. 
Distribution of turnover based on the 
location of customers was as follows: 
Finland 47 (43)%, rest of Europe 21 
(25)%, Asia 30 (30)%, USA 1 (1)% and the 
others 2 (1)%.

The Chinese subsidiaries’ sales ac-
counted for 37% of the Group’s sales 
during the review period (39% in 2007), 
including deliveries to the Group’s 
other plants.  

The Group’s business develop-
ment measures have been success-
ful. Profitability during the review 
period remained very satisfactory and 
operating profit amounted to EUR 21.1 
(18.6) million, representing 9.7 (8.3)% of 
turnover. Profit for the review period 
was EUR 15.6 (14.1) million, which is 7.1 
(6.3)% of turnover. Earnings per share 
were EUR 0.27 (0.24) and return on 
investment 13.7 (14.1)%.

EUR 1.8 (1.2) million of capital gains 
from sale of fixed assets was recorded 
in 2008. Most of the capital gains 
from sales were generated by selling 
land that was part of the property in 
Hungary. An impairment loss of EUR 
2.9 million has been recorded during 
the period for change in fair value of 
financial assets.

Income tax includes taxes corres-
ponding to the result for the period. 
The tax in the previous year includes 
the taxes for all the retained earnings 
of the Estonian subsidiary (EUR 1.2 
million) because these earnings have 
been distributed as dividend in 2008.

Owing to the business structure, 
fluctuations in exchange rates have 
not overall had a substantial impact on 
performance. The fluctuation of the

Turnover geographically 2008 Sales geographically 2008
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Turnover annually Operating profit and operating profit% annually

Return on investment Return on equity

US dollar has an effect in Europe 
through purchases made in dollars. 
Changes in the US dollar exchange rate 
do not have a significant effect on the 
relative profitability of the Asian 
operations.

Financing and capital expenditure
The Group enjoys a strong financial pos-
ition. Liabilities amounted to EUR 46.0 
(47.9) million, EUR 34.0 (40.4) million of 
which were non-interest-bearing and 
EUR 12.0 (7.5) million interest bearing. 

The equity ration was 76.1 (73.6)% 
and gearing –38.4 (-31.8)%.

Financial assets totalled EUR 68.1 
(50.0) million, of which EUR 45.1 million 
has been deposited in bank accounts 
and in time deposits with maturity of 
three months or less. An additional 
EUR 23.0 (0) million has been invested 
in financial instruments, mainly in 
bonds, credit linked notes and FX 
carry notes, EUR 15.3 million of which 
will mature in less than a year. These 
are secondary market investments. In 
compliance with the IFRS, the invest-
ments have been measured at fair 
value, and due to the recent market 
uncertainty, an impairment loss of 
EUR 2.9 million was recorded on the 
investments on 31 December 2008. In 
conjunction with the initial recogni-
tion, the Group has classified as assets 
recognised at fair value through profit 
or loss such investments that it has 
made during the accounting period in 

instruments that include a component 
that generates a fixed interest rate and 
a component linked to, for example, a 
share index or credit liability. The latter 
component is a linked derivative that 
changes considerably the cash flow of 
the main instrument. Consequently, 
the instrument as a whole has been 
measured at fair value through profit 
or loss.

In line with the Group’s investment 
policy, half of the investment portfo-
lio is in risk-free interest rate invest-
ments and around one third in low-risk 
capital guaranteed investments, while 
around one fifth can be invested in 
non-capital guaranteed moderate risk 
investments.

No direct share investments or stra-
tegic investments were made in the 
accounting period.  

Cash flow from operating 
activities in the review period was 
positive at EUR 23.9 (20.2) million. 
Cash flow from investments was EUR 
–26.8 (4.9) million, of which EUR 25.6 
million has been invested in financial 
instruments by the parent company. 
Cash flow from funding stood at EUR 
–3.1 (-5.9) million. Change in working 
capital during the financial period was 
EUR 2.3 (0.4) million and dividends for 
previous financial period were paid 
to the amount of EUR 7.0 (5.9) million. 
The parent company’s long-term loan 
of EUR 7.5 million has been repaid 
in full. To hedge against a possible 

decline in the value of the Estonian 
kroon, the Estonian subsidiary has 
taken out a loan in EEK equivalent to 
EUR 12.0 million.

Gross investments in fixed assets 
totalled EUR 3.9 (1.4) million, which is 
1.8 (0.6)% of turnover. Over 50% of the 
investments are related to machinery 
and equipment, the rest to proper-
ties. Depreciations were EUR 6.8 (7.2) 
million.  

Board of Directors’ authorisation
The Annual General Meeting decided 
on 3 April 2008 according to the Board 
of Directors’ proposal to authorize 
the Board of Directors to decide on 
the acquisition of the Company’s own 
shares with distributable assets. In ac-
cordance with the authorisation given 
to it, the Board of Directors decide 
on 30 October 2008 to initiate a share 
buyback of maximum of two (2) mil-
lion own shares. Added together, the 
number of acquired shares and of the 
shares already held by the company 
shall not exceed ten per cent (10%) of 
the company’s share capital and of the 
number of voting shares. 

The Board of Directors has no exist-
ing share issue authorisations or au-
thorisations to issue convertible bonds 
with warrants.

Own shares
On 31 December 2008, the company 
owned a total of 2,271,192 of its own 
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Solvency

Personnel average Salaries and wages

shares, which represented 3.7% of the 
company’s share capital and votes.

The company acquired 278,046 of 
its own shares between 10 November 
and 31 December 2008. The acquisi-
tion price of these shares was EUR 
572,626.35 and the average price EUR 
2.06/share.

During the review period, the 
company disposed of 5,303 of its own 
shares in conjunction with the share-
based profit-sharing scheme of the 
Group’s Management Team.

Personnel
At the end of the review period the 
Group employed 2,068 (2,061) people, 
of whom 1,516 (1,548) worked abroad. 
At the end of the year 51 (54)% of the 
personnel was working in Chinese sub-
sidiaries. In all, 73 (75%) of the Group’s 
personnel were employed by subsidi-
aries outside Finland on 31 December 
2008. The Group employed an average 
2,132 (2,105) people during the year. 
Personnel by country: Finland 552, 
Estonia 323, Hungary 142, China 1051. 

The average age of personnel is low-
est in China about 30 years. In Hungary 
and Estonia, the average age is almost 
the same: about 33 and 35 years. The 
average age of the Finnish personnel is 
about 38 years. There is a bit more men 
working in the Group than women, 
men accounting for 55% ja women for 
45% of the personnel.

Group structure
A business transfer carried out on 1 
May 2008 split Scanfil Group’s parent 
company, Scanfil plc, into Scanfil plc 
(Finland), an investment company, and 
its fully-owned subgroup Scanfil EMS 
Oy (Finland), which engages in contract 
manufacturing. Scanfil N.V. (Hoboken), 
located in Belgium and owned 100% by 
Scanfil plc, has not had any production 
activities since 2006.

The Scanfil EMS Group consists 
of parent company Scanfil EMS Oy 
(Finland), Scanfil (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. and 
Scanfil (Hangzhou) Co., Ltd. in China, 
Scanfil Kft. (Budapest) and Rozaliá 
Invest Kft. (Budapest) in Hungary and 
Scanfil Oü (Pärnu) in Estonia. The Scan-
fil EMS Group holds the entire share 
capital in all of its subsidiaries.

On 17 September 2008, the Hungar-
ian subsidiary, Scanfil Kft., split into 
a company engaged in manufactur-
ing, Scanfil Kft. and into a real-estate 
company called Rozália Invest Kft. The 
change does not affect the Group’s 
financial performance.

Share trading and share 
performance
The highest trading price during the 
review period was EUR 2.45 and the 
lowest EUR 1.76, the closing price for 
the period standing at EUR 2,03. A total 
of 6,066,337 shares were traded during 
the period, corresponding to 10.0% of 
the total number of shares. The market 

value of the shares on 31 December 
2008 was EUR 123,2 million.

The Board of Directors and 
President
The annual general meeting held on 3 
April 2008 Asa-Matti Lyytinen, Jorma J. 
Takanen, Reijo Pöllä, Jarkko Takanen and 
Tuomo Lähdesmäki were re-
elected as members of the Board of 
Directors. At its organizing meeting 
held on 3 April 2008 the new board of 
directors elected Jorma J. Takanen as 
the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

Harri Takanen acted as the com-
pany’s President.

Risk management
The goal of Scanfil plc’s risk manage-
ment activities is to identify and ana-
lyse factors that may have a negative 
impact on achieving the company’s 
objectives in the short and long run, as 
well as to initiate measures to mini-
mise or eliminate these risks.

Operational risk management 
is the responsibility of operational 
management: the President and the 
Management Team. Operational risk 
management is an integral part of 
the management and development 
of various business processes and the 
Group’s management, monitoring and 
reporting systems. The most signifi-
cant operational risks include the trade 
cycles and uncertainties of the global 
economy as well as the impact of 

Personnel 31.12.2008
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continued negative economic 
development on the business of 
international customers. The sales and 
profitability of Scanfil may also weaken 
as demand in the customer compa-
nies’ operating environment decreases 
due to a slowdown in investments. 
Management aims to reduce risks by 
developing its partner network and 
operational processes in a way which 
ensures that product and service 
packages delivered to customers are 
competitive both in terms of product 
characteristics and price. Scanfil tries 
to reduce customer-specific risk by 
expanding its customer base especially 
to new customers in the industrial 
electronics sector. 

For a description of financial risk 
management in the Scanfil Group, 
please refer to note 29 to the consoli-
dated financial statements.

Risks and risk management are 
described in greater detail on the 
company’s website under Corporate 
Governance at www.scanfil.com.

Research and development
Owing to the nature of the company’s 
business, product development was 
mainly in cooperation with custom-
ers and Scanfil’s in-house product 
development programme was not a 
significant part of the company’s cost 
structure.

Quality and environment
Each Scanfil plc unit has a certified ISO 
9001-compliant quality management 
system. 

The aim of the system, which is 
based on process management, is to 
ensure that the entire order-delivery 
chain meets the demands of custom-
ers and other stakeholders. In order 
to improve its competitive edge, the 
company measures and improves the 
efficiency of operational processes 
according to the principles of con-
tinuous improvement. Efficient and 
measurable global processes are used 
to establish consistent practices in all 
plants and to guarantee the best pos-
sible service to customers in all units. 

Each Scanfil plc unit has a certified 

ISO 14001-compliant environmental 
management system.

Scanfil takes environmental aspects 
into consideration by performing 
regular evaluations of environmental 
systems in all its units. These evalua-
tions are used to update environmental 
considerations and assess related risks 
whenever operations change, taking 
into consideration new requirements 
by the authorities or customers.

The aim of the company’s envir-
onmental programme is to use raw 
materials and energy in an economical 
manner and to minimise emissions. In 
accordance with the aims, Scanfil has 
improved the utilisation of board ma-
terial through cellular production and 
multi-part programming in the Scanfil 
Hangzhou unit in 2008.

In addition, a DFT (Demand Flow 
Technology) training programme was 
carried out in the Scanfil EMS Group 
during 2008 in order to shorten the 
production delivery cycle and recovery 
of material. This in turn decreases the 
environmental load at Group level.

Both local and group management 
are committed to monitoring the 
development of environmental system 
indicators and the achievement of 
the related targets through regular 
reviews. At Group level, attention is 
also paid to compliance with environ-
mental permit conditions and environ-
mental improvements.

Other events in the review period
On 21 January 2008, the District Court 
of Helsinki dismissed all charges against 
the Chairman of Scanfil plc’s Board 
of Directors and against Scanfil plc’s 
former President in legal proceed-
ings that concerned a delayed profit 
warning at the turn of 2005–2006. The 
District Court of Helsinki also dismissed 
the prosecutor’s claim for sentencing 
Scanfil plc to a fine imposed 
on a corporation of EUR 25,000.
The prosecutor has appealed against 
the District Court’s decision to the 
court of appeal. The court of appeal 
hearing took place on 5 to 6 February 
2009. The court will give its decision
on a date to be announced later.

Future Prospects
Scanfil plc
The purpose of the split is to make 
fund management more effective and 
productive by diversifying the risks 
and finding new growth potential. 
Scanfil plc will focus on long-term in-
vestments instead of active dealings in 
shares. In line with the Group’s invest-
ment policy, cash assets are invested 
in risk-free interest rate investments, 
low-risk investments and non-capital 
guaranteed moderate risk invest-
ments. The current financial situation 
opens up new and improved oppor-
tunities for strategic investments and 
acquisitions for a stable company like 
Scanfil.

Scanfil EMS Subgroup
Due to the global financial crisis, the 
situation in the telecommunications 
technology and industrial electron-
ics markets where Scanfil operates 
remains so unstable that it is not pos-
sible to make reliable predictions on 
their future development. 

Scanfil has acquired new custom-
ers in the industrial electronics sector. 
This will have a positive effect on sales, 
but it is very difficult to predict how 
the financial crisis will affect demand 
in the sector as a whole in 2009.

Customers in the telecommunica-
tions technology sector have pre-
dicted a slight decrease in the market. 
Based on the most recent forecasts, 
Scanfil plc’s sales to telecommuni-
cations customers are expected to 
decrease from last year. 

Scanfil’s strong financial position 
gives the company a good relative 
competitive position on the market. 
The company management believes 
in the long-term expansion of the 
contract manufacturing market as 
ODM manufacturers continue out-
sourcing their production. As a stable 
and cost-efficient company, Scanfil 
will find excellent new opportunities 
for strengthening its market share 
and growing organically and through 
acquisitions.

Average age of personnel Gender distribution of the personnel
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GROUP       
    
    

EUR 1,000 Note 1.1.-31.12.2008  1.1.-31.12.2007
    
      
  
TURNOVER 1 218 861  224 617  
     
Changes in inventories of finished goods      
and work in progress  -688  -612  
Other operating income 2 2 484  2 120  

Use of materials and supplies 3 -143 971  -155 002  
Employee benefit expenses 4 -30 363  -29 527  
Depreciation and amortisation expense 5 -6 798  -7 163  
Other operating expenses 6 -18 397  -15 806  
     
OPERATING PROFIT  21 129  18 626    
   
Financial income 7 2 833  1 818  
Financial expenses 8 -4 576  -1 451  
     
PROFIT BEFORE TAXES  19 386  18 993    
   
Income taxes 9 -3 749  -4 858  

NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD  15 637  14 134    
   
        

Earnings per share for profit attributable to
equity holders of the parent: 10 0,27  0,24

Profit and loss statement IFRS
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 GROUP     
        
    

EUR 1,000                                                         Note 31.12.2008  31.12.2007
    

ASSETS
      
Non-current assets     
Property, plant and equipment 11 33 673 36 500
Goodwill 12 2 399 2 510
Other intangible assets 13 1 399 1 107
Available-for-sale investments 14 37 35
Financial assets with result 
impact entered at current value 19 7 697  
Receivables 15 185 211
Deferred tax assets 16 1 024 394
  46 415 40 757
     
Current assets     
Inventories 17 30 203 33 623
Trade and other receivables 18 50 532 52 334
Advance payments  58 108
Financial assets with result     
impact entered at current value 19 12 156  
Available-for-sale investments, liquid assests 20 3 159  
Available-for-sale investments, cash equivalents 21 33 996 29 621
Cash and cash equivalents 21 11 101 20 414
  141 204 136 100
    
Non-current assets held for sale 22 4 611 4 611
  145 816 140 711
     
TOTAL ASSETS  192 230 181 468
     
    
SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
    
Equity 23    
Share capital  15 179 15 179
Share premium account  16 089 16 089
Own shares  -7 436 -6 884
Translation differences  1 973 -2 645
Other reserves  3 539 2 571
Retained earnings  116 881 109 258
  146 224 133 567
     
Total Equity  146 224 133 567
     
Non-current liabilities     
Deferred tax liabilities 16 1 036 2 263
Provisions 24 6 041 7 021
Interest-bearing liabilities 25 12 016
  19 093 9 284
Current liabilities    
Trade and other payables  25 947 30 397
Current tax liabilities  967 719
Interest-bearing liabilities 25  7 500
 26 26 913 38 616
    
Total liabilities  46 006 47 901
     
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  192 230  181 468   

Balance sheet IFRS
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GROUP    
    

1,000 EUR Note 2008  2007

Cash flow from operating activities     
Profit for the period  15 637 14 134  
Adjustments 27 10 196 8 662  
Changes in working capital 27 2 302 400  
Interest paid and other financial expenses  -798 -400 
Interest received  2 114 1 312  
Taxes paid  -5 540 -3 951  
Net cash flow from operating activities  23 910 20 158  

Cash flow from investing activities      
Investments in tangible and intangible assets  -3 413 -1 687  
Sale of tangible and intangible assets  2 227 6 313  
Investments in other investments  -25 606   
Proceeds from sale of investments   240  
Dividend received    1 1  
Net cash flow from investing activities   -26 791 4 867  
      
 
Cash flow from financing activities     
Acquisition of own shares  -540   
Long-term loans raised  12 015   
Repayment of short-term loans  -7 500   
Dividends paid  -7 047 -5 872  
Net cash flow from financing activities  -3 072 -5 872  
      
 
Change in cash and cash equivalents  -5 953 19 153  
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Jan.  50 034 31 802  
Changes in exchange rates  1 016 -571  
Changes in fair value of investments   -350 
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 Dec. 21 45 097  50 034   

Cash flow statement IFRS
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 Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company    
  
EUR 1,000     
     

  Share  Share Own Translation Other Fair Retained Equity  
  capital premium- shares differences reserves value earnings total
   account    reserve   
  

Shareholders’ equity        
31.12.2006 15 179 16 089 -6 890 -671 1 889 125 101 677 127 399
        
        
Available-for-sale investments:        
Reversal of remeasurement to fair value      -125  -125
        
Translation differences    -1 975    -1 975
        
Net income recognised directly in equity    -1 975  -125  -2 100
        
Net profit for the period       14 134 14 134
        
Total recognised income and expense for the period  -1 975  -125 14 134 12 034
        
Dividends paid       -5 872 -5 872
Transfer to reserves     682  -682 
Distribution of own shares   6     6
        
Shareholders’ equity        
31.12.2007 15 179 16 089 -6 884 -2 645 2 571  109 258 133 567
        
Translation differences    4 618    4 618
        
Net income recognised directly in equity    4 618    4 618
        
Net profit for the period       15 637 15 637
        
Total recognised income and expense for the period  4 618   15 637 20 255
        
Dividends paid       -7 047 -7 047
Transfer to reserves     968  -968 
Distribution of own shares   21     21
Acquisition of own shares   -573     -573
        
Shareholders’ equity        
31.12.2008 15 179 16 089 -7 436 1 973 3 539  116 881 146 224

Statement of changes in equity IFRS
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ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES FOR CON-
SOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Scanfil plc is a Finland-based public 
limited company domiciled in Sievi. 
Scanfil plc and its subsidiaries con-
stitute the Scanfil Group (“Scanfil” or 
“Group”). In the business transfer on 1 
May 2008, Scanfil plc was split into an
investment company, Scanfil plc, and a
subgroup called Scanfil EMS Oy, which 
engages in contract manufactuing. 
Scanfil EMS Oy is an international con-
tract manufacturer and systems sup-
plier for the telecommunications and 
electronics industries. In the business 
transfer, all contract manufacturing 
assets, liabilities and provisions of 
Scanfil plc were transfered to Scanfil 
EMS Oy at book values. All immaterial 
rights, machinery and equipment,
the shares of the subsidiaries in China, 
Hungary and Estonia, inventories as well 
as short-term receivables and liabili-
ties, excluding those related to the op-
er-ation of Scanfil NV, were transfered 
to Scanfil EMS Oy. Facilities owned by 
Scanfil plc and assets that are not a 
part of its primary operations, mainly 
financial assets, as well as the shares of 
the subsidiary Scanfil NV, remained in 
Scanfil plc. Scanfil NV has not engaged 
in any operation since 2006.

Scanfil’s consolidated financial 
statements have been prepared in ac-
cordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), applying 
the IAS and IFRS effective on 31 Decem-
ber 2005 as well as the SIC and IFRIC 
interpretations. The “IFRS” refer to the 
standards and their interpretations in 
the Finnish Accounting Act and the 
provisions issued thereunder in ac-
cordance with the Regulation (EC) No 
1606/2002 of the European Parliament 
and of the Council on the application 
of international accounting standards 
within the Community. The notes to 
the consolidated financial statements 
are also in compliance with Finnish 
accounting and corporate legislation. 
Scanfil adopted the IFRS on 1 January 
2004, until which date statements were 
prepared under Finnish Accounting 
Standards (FAS). The company has ap-
plied the First-Time Adoption of IFRS, 
which permits certain exemptions 
from the retrospective application of 
individual standards at the transition 
stage. The most significant exemp-
tion is the use of book values of FAS 
financial statements as the book values 
of the consolidated goodwill in the 
opening balance sheet of the date of 
transition to IFRS. 

Principles of consolidation
In addition to Scanfil plc, the consoli-
dated financial statements include all 
those companies in which the parent 
company has, directly or indirectly, 

more than 50 per cent of the votes 
or which the company controls in 
another way.  
Intra-group shareholdings have been 
eliminated using the acquisition cost 
method. The acquisition price is allo-
cated to assets and liabilities based on 
their fair value at the time of acquisi-
tion. The remaining amount of the 
acquisition cost is handled as goodwill. 
Business acquisitions made prior to 
the date of transition have not been 
restated, as the company has applied 
the relief permitted under IFRS 1 to 
handle business acquisitions in accord-
ance with Finnish Accounting Stand-
ards. As of 1 January 2004, the amor-
tisation of goodwill arising from such 
acquisitions has been replaced with 
annual impairment tests determining 
the value of goodwill. 
Intra-group transactions, receiva-
bles and liabilities as well as internal 
margins related to inventories and 
internal sales of fixed assets have been 
eliminated. 
Net profit for the financial period is 
divided into a share belonging to the 
equity holders of the parent company 
and a share belonging to the minor-
ity. Minority interest is reported as a 
separate component of equity.

Transactions in foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are 
recorded using the exchange rates 
ruling on the transaction dates. In 
practice, a rate that is sufficiently close 
to the rate of the transaction date is 
often used. The resulting exchange 
rate differences have been included in 
the net profit or loss. 
In the consolidated financial state-
ments, the income statements of 
foreign Group companies are trans-
lated into euros using the average an-
nual rates published by the European 
Central Bank, calculated on the basis of 
end-of-month rates. The companies’ 
balance sheets are translated into eu-
ros using the rates in force on the date 
of the financial statements. 
Translation differences owing to the 
different exchange rates used in the 
income statement and balance sheet 
as well as the differences attribut-
able to the use of the acquisition cost 
method have been recorded in Group 
equity.

Revenue recognition
Revenue arising from the sale of goods 
is recognised when the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership have 
been transferred to the buyer and the 
amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably. Exchange rate gains and losses 
related to the sales as well as any cash 
discounts have been entered as adjust-
ment items on sales. The delivery costs 
of sold goods are included in other 
operating expenses.

Grants
Grants related to tangible and intan-
gible assets are deducted from an 
asset’s acquisition cost, and the net 
acquisition cost is capitalised on the 
balance sheet. Other economic 
assistance is recognised as income 
within other operating income.

Business segments
The Group operates in one business 
sector only. The primary reporting 
format is geographical segments.

Pensions
The statutory pension cover of the 
Group’s Finnish employees is provided 
through insurance policies. Foreign 
subsidiaries have arranged the pension 
cover of their employees in accord-
ance with local legislation.  
The Group’s pension schemes are 
defined-contribution schemes. Only 
the disability pension under the 
Finnish TEL system was a defined-
benefit scheme until the end of 2005.  
Contributions related to defined-
contribution pension schemes are 
recorded as expenses for the financial 
period in which they were paid.  
 
Research and development costs
Research and development costs are 
recorded as expenses for the financial 
period in which they were incurred. 
Development costs as per IAS 38 
(Intangible Assets) are capitalised and 
amortised over their useful lives. The 
Group has no capitalised research and 
development costs.

Leases
According to IAS 17, a lease is classi-
fied as a finance lease if it transfers 
substantially the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership to the Group. 
Assets acquired through finance leases 
are recorded in the consolidated bal-
ance sheet under assets and liabilities. 
Their depreciation is performed in the 
same way as for owned assets. Finance 
lease payments will be recorded as 
financial expenses and reduction in 
liability. The Group has no finance 
leases.

Property, plant and equipment
The main items included in this 
category are buildings, machinery, 
equipment, fixtures and fittings. They 
are stated in the balance sheet at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and 
any impairment losses. Depreciation is 
calculated on a straight-line basis over 
the expected useful lives of the assets.

The assets’ residual values and 
useful lives are reviewed annually and 
adjusted, if appropriate, to indicate 
changes in expected economic 
benefits.  
An item of property, plant and equip-
ment will no longer be depreciated 
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when such an item is considered as 
being held for sale in accordance with 
IFRS 5 Non-current assets Held for Sale 
and Discontinued Operations. 

The planned depreciation periods 
are as follows:
Buildings and structures 10–50* 
Machinery and equipment 3–10 
Other tangible assets 5–10
* The depreciation period for buildings 
is 10–25 years, except for the building 
in Hungary, for which it is 50 years.

Goodwill and other intangible
assets
Goodwill
Goodwill corresponds to that amount 
of the acquisition cost that exceeds 
the fair value of net assets at the time 
of acquisition of a company acquired 
after 1 January 2004. No depreciations 
are made on goodwill; instead, good-
will will be tested annually for possible 
impairment. Goodwill is allocated to 
the cash generating units. 

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets are recorded in the 
original acquisition cost on the balance 
sheet if the acquisition cost can be 
reliably determined and it is likely that 
the financial benefit from the asset 
is beneficial to the Group. Intangible 
assets are recorded as straight-line de-
preciations on the income statement 
within their estimated useful life.

Other intangible assets include soft-
ware licenses, fundamental improve-
ments of rented premises and the land 
use right of the subsidiary in China.  
The depreciation period for intangible 
assets is 5–10 years, except for the land 
use right in China, for which it is 50 
years.

Impairment
The Group’s operations have been di-
vided into cash-generating units (CGU) 
which are smaller than segments. The 
need for impairment is assessed regu-
larly on the CGU level. The impairment 
test is conducted for the lowest CGU 
that is largely independent of other 
units and whose cash flows can be 
separated from other cash flows. 

To determine the need for impair-
ment of assets, the capital employed 
by the unit is compared against the 
discounted future cash flows expected 
to be derived from the unit or against 
the net selling price, whichever is 
higher. An impairment loss is recog-
nised when the carrying amount of an 
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. 
An impairment loss related to prop-
erty, plant and equipment and other 
intangible assets, excluding goodwill, 
is reversed if there has been a change 
in the estimates used to determine the 
recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is reversed only to the extent 
that the asset’s carrying amount does 

not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of 
depreciation, if no impairment loss had 
been recognised. An impairment loss 
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

Investment property
Property that is not occupied, even 
partially, by the Group for its own 
activities, is classified as investment 
property. The Group had no invest-
ment properties during the period.

Non-current assets held for sale 
and discontinued operations
The assets and liabilities of major 
operations that have been sold or 
are classified as held for sale or to be 
discontinued are presented separately 
in the balance sheet. The net operat-
ing result for such operations and 
the net result arising from their sale 
or discontinuation are shown in the 
income statement separately from the 
profit or loss for continued opera-
tions. Non-current assets classified as 
held for sale or groups of assets to be 
disposed of are measured at the lower 
of carrying amount and fair value less 
costs to sell.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of 
cost and net realisable value. Cost is 
determined on a weighted-average 
basis. The costs of inventories include 
purchase and conversion costs.

Financial assets
Based on IAS 39, the Group’s financial 
assets are classified into the follow-
ing categories: financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss, loans and 
other receivables and available-for-sale 
investments. The classification is based 
on the intended use of the financial 
assets. 

Financial assets recorded at fair value 
are either financial assets held for sale 
or investments held to maturity. This 
group includes bonds, index loans, cer-
tificates of deposit, commercial papers 
and FX carry notes. Several instruments 
include a component that generates 
a fixed interest rate and a component 
linked to, for example, a share index or 
credit liability, which is a linked deriva-
tive. Items are measured at fair value 
based on published market quotations. 
Changes in fair value with both realised 
and unrealised profits and losses are 
recorded under financing income and 
expenses for that accounting period 
when they arose.

Assets held for trading are included 
either in short-term or long-term 
financial assets; in the latter, if they 
mature in more than 12 months.

Loans and other receivables are non-
derivative financial instruments that 

are not quoted on public markets; they 
have a fixed or definable payment day 
and the Group does not hold them for 
trading. This entry includes sales and 
other receivables. Accounts receivable 
are measured at cost less any impair-
ment losses. The amount of uncertain 
receivables is evaluated on a case-by-
case basis. Credit losses are recorded 
as expenses in the income statement. 

This entry also includes time de-
posits; on the balance sheet, available-
for-sale investments, liquid assets that 
mature in over three months.

Both quoted and non-quoted shares 
are classified as available-for-sale in-
vestments. Quoted shares are meas-
ured at fair value, which is the market 
price of the date of the financial 
statement. Changes in fair value are 
recorded in the revaluation reserve 
under equity until the investment is 
traded or otherwise transferred, at 
which point the changes in fair value 
are recorded in the income state-
ment. Investments in non-quoted 
shares are stated at the lower of cost 
and probable realisable value because 
their fair values cannot be determined 
reliably. In the financial statement of 31 
December 2008, this category includes 
non-quoted shares only. 

On the date of the financial state-
ment, the Group’s financial assets are 
evaluated to see if there are indica-
tions that the value of one of the as-
sets might be impaired.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash 
at bank and in hand as well as short-
term bank deposits.  Deposits are 
classified in two categories: available-
for-sale investments, liquid assets that 
mature in less than three months and 
available-for-sale investments, liquid 
assets that mature in over three 
months. The latter are classified in the 
category Loans and other receivables. 
Liquid assets are reported under 
acquisition costs on the balance sheet.

Financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities are 
stated at historical cost.

Provisions 
A provision is recognised when a past 
event has created an obligation that 
will probably be realised and when 
the amount of the obligation can be 
estimated reliably. Provisions include, 
among others, restructuring costs. A 
restructuring provision is recorded 
when a detailed and appropriate plan 
has been drawn up and when there is 
a valid expectation that the restructur-
ing will be carried out.

Taxation
The taxes of the consolidated income 
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statement include taxes based on the 
results of the Group companies and 
calculated in accordance with local 
tax laws and tax rates. The taxes in 
the income statement also include 
the change in deferred tax assets and 
liabilities. 
Deferred tax assets or liabilities are 
calculated on temporary differences 
between book value and tax bases, 
based on tax rates for the following 
year that have been enacted by the 
balance sheet date. 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised 
in full. Deferred tax assets are recog-
nised only when it is probable that 
the assets can be utilised against 
the taxable profit of future financial 
periods. In the consolidated financial 
statements, the parent company’s ac-
cumulated depreciation difference is 
divided between shareholders’ equity 
and deferred tax liability.

Dividend
The dividend proposed to the
Annual General Meeting by the Board 
of Directors has not been deducted 
from distributable equity prior to the 
AGM’s approval.

Use of estimates
The preparation of financial state-
ments in accordance with internation-
al accounting standards and generally 
accepted accounting principles re-
quires management to make esti-
mates and assumptions that affect the 
contents of the financial statements. 
The estimates and assumptions made 
are based on previous experience and 
assumptions, which in turn are based 
on the circumstances prevailing at 
the time the financial statements are 
prepared and future prospects. 

When performing impairments 
tests, the Group’s management has 
made assumptions and estimates 
in defining the value in use of cash-
generating units. The sector in which 
the company operates is characterised 
by intense competition and thin profit 
margins. 

The measurement of inventories 
and obsolescence risk assessment also 
involve estimates made by manage-
ment. Inventories are mainly pur-
chased based on forecasts provided by 
the company’s customers, and sudden 
changes in demand may affect the 
saleability of inventories. 

Even though the estimates are 
based on the most recent information 
available and management’s best
judgement, the actual outcome may 
differ from the estimates.

Amounts stated in thousands
of euros
The financial statements are pre-
sented in thousands of euros, and 
the information is based on historical 

costs unless otherwise stated in the 
accounting principles. 
Individual figures and totals shown in 
the financial statements have been 
rounded to the nearest thousand eu-
ros, which is why individual figures do 
not always add up to the totals.

Applying amended IFRS
The Group estimates that the cur-
rently known new interpretations 
or standards will not have a material 
impact on the Group’s future financial 
statements; they will mainly affect the 
notes to the consolidated financial 
statements. 
Scanfil will implement the following 
new or revised standards and new 
interpretations issued by IASB and 
affecting the consolidated financial 
statements in 2008 or later. 

IASB has published the following new 
or revised standards and interpret-
ations that have not come into force 
yet and that the Group has not applied. 
The Group will apply them as of the ef-
fective date of each standard or inter-
pretation or, when the effective date 
is not the first date of the financial 
period, from the beginning of the next 
financial period.
- IFRIC 11, IFRS 2 – Group and Treasury 
Share Transactions (effective date 1 
March 2007). The new interpretation 
clarifies the accounting treatment of 
payments based on the entity’s own 
equity instruments and requires the 
reassessment of such transactions in 
the subsidiary. The new interpretation 
will not have an effect on future con-
solidated financial statements.
- IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrange-
ments (effective date 1 January 2008). 
The Group does not have the kind of 
government contracts defined in the 
interpretation and the interpretation 
will not have an effect on future con-
solidated financial statements. 
- IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Pro-
grammes (effective date 1 July 2008). 
The Group does not have the kind of 
customer loyalty programmes defined 
in the interpretation and the interpre-
tation will not have an effect on future 
consolidated financial statements. 
- IFRIC 14 IAS 19 – The Limit on a 
Defined Benefit Asset (effective date 
1 January 2008). The interpretation 
applies to post-employment employee 
benefits and other long-term em-
ployee benefits as defined in IAS-19 
when a minimum funding requirement 
applies. The interpretation will not 
have an effect on future consolidated 
financial statements. 
- IFRS 8 Operating Segments (effec-
tive date 1 January 2009). Under the 
new standard, segment reporting is 
based on the internal reporting of the 
entity’s management and the account-
ing principles of such reporting.  IFRS 8 

requires disclosing information about 
the Group’s products, services, geo-
graphical areas and major customers. 
The Group estimates that applying IFRS 
8 mainly affects the way that segment 
information is given in the notes to 
the consolidated financial statements.
- Revised IAS 23 Borrowing Costs 
(effective date 1 January 2009). The 
standard requires that the acquisition 
cost of a qualifying asset includes the 
liability costs.
- Revised IAS 1 Presentation of Fi-
nancial Statements (effective date 1 
January 2009). The revised standard 
changes the presentation of financial 
statements. The revision affects mostly 
the presentation of the Group’s in-
come statement and the statement of 
changes in shareholders’ equity.
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EUR 1,000    
1. Segment information    
    
Geographical segments   2008 Europe Asia Group
    
Segment turnover  152 321 89 657 241 978 
Intersegment turnover  -3 329 -19 787 -23 116 
Total turnover    218 861 
     
Operating profit  10 034 11 095 21 129 

Segment assets  103 994 51 024 155 018 
Goodwill  2 268  2 268 
Unallocated assets    34 944 
Total assets    192 230 
    
Segment liabilities and provisions  33 917 12 089 46 006 
Total liabilities    46 006    

Capital expenditure  1 237 2 683 3 921
Depreciation and amortisation  3 986 2 811 6 798 

 2007 Europe Asia Group   
    
Segment turnover  150 187 92 420 242 607 
Intersegment turnover  -5 382 -12 609 -17 991 
Total turnover    224 617

Operating profit  7 531 11 095 18 626 
  
Segment assets  127 528 51 562 179 090 
Goodwill  2 378  2 378 
Total assets    181 468 
     
Segment liabilities and provisions  26 634 13 767 40 401 
Unallocated liabilities     7 500 
Total liabilities    47 901    
     
Capital expenditure  805 591 1 396 
Depreciation and amortisation  4 713 2 450 7 163

Notes to consolidated financial statements IFRS

Basic information about
the company’s operations

Segment
Segment reporting is based on the 
Group’s organisational structure and 
reporting system. The Group’s risks 
and profitability are primarily affected 
by the geographical location of opera-
tions and the location of markets. 
The geographical market areas differ 
from one another in terms of price 
level, competitive situation and the 
company’s own resource investments. 
Geographical segments are based 
on the location of production 
plants’ assets.

For management purposes, the 
Group has been divided globally into 
two functional geographical areas: 
Europe and Asia. The primary segment 
information reported is based on 

the geographical division.  In Europe, 
the company is a contract manufac-
turer and systems supplier for the 
telecommunications and electronics 
industries. In addition, the company’s 
operations are managed from Finland. 
Within the European Union, the com-
pany has production units in Finland, 
Hungary and Estonia. The Belgian 
operations were discontinued in 2006.  
In Asia, the operations are largely simi-
lar in nature, consisting of contract 
manufacturing. Nearly the entire pro-
duction is sold in the Asian markets 
and the Group’s other segments. 

The assets of a segment include 
all assets used in the operations of 
that segment, consisting mainly of 
cash and cash equivalents, receiva-
bles, inventories, and property, plant 
and equipment, less provisions and 
deductions resulting from impair-

ment. A majority of the assets can 
immediately be allocated to individual 
segments, but the carrying amount 
of certain assets used jointly by two 
or more segments has been allocated 
to segments on a reasonable basis. 
The liabilities of a segment include 
all liabilities related to operations, 
consisting mainly of trade payables, 
outstanding salaries and taxes as well 
as accrued liabilities. 

Intersegment transactions: seg-
ment revenue, expenses and result 
include transactions between geo-
graphical segments. Such transac-
tions have mainly been defined 
on the basis of competitive prices 
charged from external customers for 
similar products. The transactions are 
eliminated in consolidation.
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Turnover by location of customers    
Finland 102 890 96 160
Rest of Europe 45 655 56 161
Asia 65 719 66 681
USA 1 105 2 345
Other 3 493 3 270
Total 218 861 224 617
    
    
2. Other operating income    
    
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1 841 1 173
Rental incomet 202 136
Grants 21 37
Other 420 774
Total 2 484 2 120    

    
3. Use of materials and supplies    
    
Materials, supplies and goods    

Purchases during the period 141 238 148 084
Change in inventories 2 732 6 918

Total 143 971 155 002
    
    
4. Employee benefit expenses    
    
Salaries, wages and fees 24 536 23 389
Pension costs – defined-contribution schemes  3 949 4 017
Other indirect employee expenses 1 877 2 122
Total 30 363 29 527    

    
Pension costs and other indirect employee expenses are not necessarily comparable from country to country.
The company does not have outstanding stock options.    
    
Average number of Group employees during the period    
    
Clerical employees    

Europe 190 192
Asia 140 134  

 330 326
Employees    

Europe 828 840
Asia 974 939  

 1 802 1 779
    
Total 2 132 2 105
    
    
Management’s employee benefits are reported in note 33, Related party transactions.    

    
5. Depreciation, amortisation and impairment    
    
Depreciation and amortisation by asset class    

Intangible assets    
Intangible rights 155 153
Other long-term expenses 199 157

Total  354 310

Property, plant and equipment    
Buildings 1 057 1 022
Machinery and equipment 5 364 5 775
Other tangible assets 22 56

Total 6 443 6 853

Total depreciation and amortisation 6 798 7 163

Notes to consolidated financial statements IFRS
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6. Other operating expenses    
    
Other operating expenses include the following      
significant expense items:    
    
External services 4 812 4 198
Sales freight 3 372 3 028
Other variable expenses 3 864 3 227
Rent and maintenance expenses 1 636 1 645
Travel, marketing and vehicle expenses 697 718
Other employee expenses 948 657
Other operating expenses 3 068 2 334
Total 18 397 15 806    

    
7. Financial income     
    
Interest income from investments held to maturity 1 120 464
Dividend income from available-for-sale investments 1 1
Capital gains from available-for-sale investments, net  167  
Exchange rate gains 540 224   
Capital gains from financial assets at fair value 
     through profit or loss  536
Capital gains from marketable securities 876 203
Other financial income 296 223
Total 2 833 1 818

    
8. Financial expenses      

Interest expenses from financial liabilities 672 334
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
     through profit or loss 2 944 350
Exchange rate losses 891 702   
Other financial expenses 69 65   
Total 4 576 1 451   

     
9. Income taxes   

Current tax 5 584 3 820   
Deferred taxes -1 834 1 038   
Total 3 749 4 858   
  

Reconciliation of tax expense in the income statement and taxes calculated at the tax rate applicable
in Finland (26%):

Earnings before taxes 19 386 18 993

Taxes calculated at Finnish tax rate 5 040 4 938   
Different tax rates of foreign subsidiaries -1 526 -1 637   
Non-deductible expenses 29 17   
Tax payable based on dividends to be paid at Estonian subsidiary  1 121
Other items 206 420   
Taxes in income statement 3 749 4 858   

     
10. Earnings per share  
     
Net profit for the period attributable to equity holders
of the parent company 15 637 14 134   

Number of shares at end of the period (1,000) 58 443 58 716   
Weighted average number of shares 58 696 58 716   
during the period (1,000)     
   
Earnings per share (EPS) EUR  0,27 0,24

Notes to consolidated financial statements

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

IFRS
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11. Property, plant and equipment         2008

     Advance
    Other payments and Tangible
  Buildings and Machinery and tangible constructions assets
 Land constructions equipments assets in progress total
       
Acquisition cost 1 Jan. 1 519 25 394 57 405 754 34 85 106

Additions 309 248 2 278 22 962 3 819
Deductions -231 -1 -11 436  -483 -12 151
Exchange rate differences -35 -106 1 587 -2 -4 1 439 

Acquisition cost 31 Dec. 1 562 25 535 49 835 773 509 78 213

Accumulated depreciations 1 Jan.  -6 076 -41 921 -608  -48 606
Depreciations  -1 057 -5 364 -22  -6 443
Deductions  1 11 358   11 359
Exchange rate differences  17 -868 1  -850

Accumulated depreciations 31 Dec.  -7 115 -36 795 -630  -44 540

Carrying amount 31 Dec. 1 562 18 420 13 039 143 509 33 673

The value of land includes connection fees EUR 167,396
Undepreciated acquisition cost of production machinery and equipments EUR 12,861,355    

11. Property, plant and equipment          2007

     Advance
    Other payments and Tangible
  Buildings and Machinery and tangible constructions assets
 Land constructions equipments assets in progress total

Acquisition cost 1 Jan. 1 525 22 700 60 511 739 3 265 88 740
Additions  2 799 1 318 23 648 4 788
Deductions   -3 428  -3 859 -7 286
Exchange rate differences -6 -104 -996 -8 -21 -1 135

Acquisition cost 31 Dec. 1 519 25 394 57 405 754 34 85 106

Accumulated depreciations 1 Jan.  -5 065 -39 992 -561  -45 618
Depreciations  -1 022 -5 775 -56  -6 853
Deductions   3 231   3 231
Exchange rate differences  10 614 9  633 

Accumulated depreciations 31 Dec.  -6 076 -41 921 -608  -48 606

Carrying amount 31 Dec. 1 519 19 318 15 484 145 34 36 500
     
The value of land includes connection fees EUR 118,790        
Undepreciated acquisition cost of production machinery and equipments EUR 15,385,042

12. Goodwill 2008 2007

Goodwill     
Cost at 1 Jan. 2 510 2 527

Exchange rate differences -110 -18  
Cost at 31 Dec. 2 399 2 510  
Carrying amount 31 Dec. 2 399 2 510

Allocation of goodwill and goodwill on consolidation
to cash-generating units   

Scanfil Kft, Hungary 2 157 2 267
Other 243 243   

Total 2 399 2 510

Annual impairment tests
Goodwill is allocated to the cash generating units. Goodwills have been tested by comparing their carrying amounts and 
their estimated recoverable amounts. Impairment is tested by comparing the recoverable amount to its balance sheet 
value. With respect to Hungary, the goodwill tested is EUR 2.2 million, fixed assets EUR 7.8 million and net working capital 
EUR 4.8 million. The time period used for cash flow projections is five years. Cash flows beyond that period are extrapola-
ted using an estimated growth rate of 1%. The interest rate used is 7.92%.
The tests showed that there was no need for impairment. 

EUR 1,000
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The testing requires forecasts and assumptions regarding the growth of markets, prices, development of volumes and the 
general interest rate level. The most sensitive areas are the anticipated level of turnover and profitability. A more than ten 
per cent decrease in the level of profitability may mean that goodwill has to be impaired. 

13. Other intangible assets          2008

  Other Intangible
 Intangible long-term assets
 rights expenses total

Acquisition cost 1 Jan. 2 272 838 3 110
Additions 64 521 584
Exchange rate differences 71 54 125

Acquisition cost 31 Dec. 2 407 1 413 3 819

Accumulated depreciations 1 Jan. -1 434 -569 -2 003
Depreciations -155 -199 -354
Exchange rate differences -16 -47 -63  

Accumulated depreciations 31 Dec. -1 605 -815 -2 420    

Carrying amount 31 Dec. 801 598 1 399
              

              
13. Other intangible assets          2007

  Other Intangible
 Intangible long-term assets
 rights expenses total

Acquisition cost 1 Jan.  2 185 848 3 034
Additions 425 8 434
Deductions -432  -432
Exchange rate differences 93 -18 74  

Acquisition cost 31 Dec. 2 272 838 3 110  

Accumulated depreciations 1 Jan. -1 600 -423 -2 023
Depreciations -153 -157 -310
Deductions 432  432
Exchange rate differences -113 11 -102  

Accumulated depreciations 31 Dec. -1 434 -569 -2 003   

Carrying amount 31 Dec. 838 269 1 107

14. Available-for-sale investments 2008 2007
     
Cost at 1 Jan. 35 108 

Additions 2
Deductions  -73

Cost at 31 Dec. 37 35
Accumulated impairment at 1 Jan. -0 -0
Accumulated changes in fair value at 1 Jan.  169

Change in fair value  -169
Carrying amount 31 Dec. 37 35

Available-for-sale investments consist of non-quoted shares and are stated at cost.

15. Receivables 2008 2007

Cost at 1 Jan. 211 211
Installment 2009 -25

Carrying amount 31 Dec. 185 211    
     
The subordinated loan, originally granted in 2001, was changed to debt evidenced by certificates with normal terms 
and conditions on 13 June 2008 as allowed by the company’s shareholder’s equity.
A new payment schedule has been calculated for the loan.
An impairment of EUR 50,000 was recorded in 2006.

Notes to consolidated financial statements
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16. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets
Remeasurement at fair value 765
Related to inventories 151 214
Provisions  82
Other 108 99   

Total 1 024 394
 
Deferred tax liabilities:

Accumulated depreciation difference -875 -985
Reversal of amortisation of assets classified as available-for-sale -158 -79
Tax payable based on dividends to be paid at Estonian subsidiary  -1 197
Other -3 -2

Total -1 036 -2 263    

17. Inventories

Materials and supplies 20 220 22 952
Work in progress 7 119 6 059   
Finished goods 2 864 4 612   
Total 30 203 33 623

During the 2008 accounting period, EUR 0.4 million (EUR 2.1 million in 2007) was charged to expense to write down invento-
ries to their net realisable value.

18. Trade and other receivables
   
Trade receivables 48 860 50 398
Loan receivables 25
Accrued income 976 675
Other 670 1 262
Total 50 532 52 334

Accrued income include receivables related to social insurance payments, income taxes and interests. Other receivables 
consist mainly of VAT receivables.     

19. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
    
Held for trading
Acquisition cost 1 Jan.

Long term 8 927
Short term 13 860    

Total 22 787
Change in fair value -2 933    
Carrying amount 31 Dec.

Long term 7 697
Short term 12 156

Total 19 854    
    
Financial assets recorded during the period for change in fair value consist mainly of bonds, index loans and certificate of 
deposits and commercial papers. 

20. Available-for-sale investments, liquid assets

Available-for-sale investments, liquid assets 3 159    
    
Available-for-sale investments, liquid assets, are bank deposits that mature in over three moths.
They are classified in the category Loans and other receivables.     

21. Cash and cash equivalents   
    
Cash and cash equivalents 11 101 20 414
Available-for-sale investments, cash equivalents  33 996 29 621
Total 45 097 50 034
    
Available-for-sale investments, cash equivalents, are bank deposits that mature in a maximum of three moths.

EUR 1,000 2008 2007
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22. Non-current assets held for sale
 
Scanfil plc’s Oulu plant property 4 611 4 611
Total 4 611 4 611 

The company is in the process of selling Scanfil plc’s Oulu facilities.      

23. Shareholders’ equity 

The following is a reconciliation of the number of shares:

 Number of  Share  
 shares Share premium Treasury Total
 pcs 1,000 capital account shares 

31.12.2006 58 714 15 179 16 089 -6 890 24 377
Distribution of own shares 2   6 6
31.12.2007 58 716 15 179 16 089 -6 884 24 383
Acquisition of own shares -278   -573 -573
Distribution of own shares 5   21 21
31.12.2008 58 443 15 179 16 089 -7 436 23 832

Shares and share capital      
Scanfil plc has a total of 60,714,270 shares. The company’s registered share capital is EUR 15,178,567.50.
The company has one series of shares, and all shares belong to the same class. Each share entitles the holder to one vote 
and the equal right to receive dividends. 
Scanfil plc’s shares are quoted on NASDAQ OMX Helsinki Oy. The shares have been publicly traded since 24 May 2000.
The trading code of the shares is SCF1V. The shares are included in the book-entry system maintained by the Finnish Central 
Securities Depository Ltd.

Translation differences
Translation differences include differences arising from the conversion of the financial statements of foreign companies.

Other reserves
Other reserves include transfers from retained earnings in accordance with the Articles of Association of foreign companies.

Own shares and authorisations of the Board of Directors
On 31 December 2008, the company owned a total of 2,271,192 of its own shares representing 3.7% of the company’s share 
capital and votes.
The Annual General Meeting held on 3 April 2008 decided to extend by 18 moths the term of validity of the authorisation to 
acquire treasure shares decided by the previous Annual General Meeting held on 12 April 2007. The authorisation applies to 
the acquisition of a maximum of 4,000,000 treasury shares.
In the financial period 2008, a total of 278,046 treasury share were acquired. The acquisition price of these shares was EUR 
572,262.35 and the average price EUR 2.06/share. The shares were acquired between 10 November and 31 December 2008 
through NASDAQ OMX Helsinki Oy.
The Board of Directors has no existing share issue authorisations or authorisations to issue convertible bonds or
bonds with warrants.

Dividend
After the closing of the accounts, the Board of Directors has proposed a dividend of EUR 0.09/share and an additional
dividend of EUR 0.03/share be paid.

24. Provisions

Provisions 1 Jan. 7 021 8 456
Additions to provisions

Index increase of pension liability 475
Provisions for warranty costs and liability for materials  126
Provision for unemployment pensions  95

Used provisions -1 083 -1 635
Reversal of unused provisions -372 -21
Provisions 31 Dec. 6 041 7 021

Provision changes were mainly changes in the pension liability related to the restructuring costs of Scanfil NV.

25. Interest-bearing liabilities
  
Bank loans 12 016 7 500
Total 12 016 7 500

To hedge against a possible decline in the value of the Estonian kroon, the Estonian subsidiary has taken out a loan of EEK 
188,000,000 and it will mature on 21 February 2010. The interest of the loan is linked to the 12-month Hansa Prime reference 
rate. On 31 December 2008, the interest rate on the loan was 6.35%.
The parent company’s loan of EUR 7.5 million has been repaid full on 8 January 2008.

Notes to consolidated financial statements
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26. Short-term liabilities
    
Short-term liabilities

Trade payables 18 191 24 289
Accrued liabilities 6 977 5 749
Advance payments received 11 72
Interest-bearing liabilities  7 500
Other creditors 1 735 1 006

Total 26 913 38 616

The most significant items included in accrued liabilities:
Employee expenses 5 213 4 142
Direct taxes 967 719
Interests  87 144
Other accrued liabilities 710 745

Total 6 977 5 749

27. Cash flow statement adjustments
   
Non-cash transactions

Depreciation according to plan 6 798 7 163
Financial income and expenses 1 743 -367
Taxes 3 749 4 858
Changes in provisions -980 -1 435
Other adjustments -1 114 -1 557

Total 10 196 8 662

Changes in working capital
Inc(-)/dec(+) in short-term non-interest bearing receivables 4 953 -10 524
Inc(-)/dec(+) in inventories 4 107 7 344
Inc(+)/dec(-) in short-term non-interest-bearing liabilities  -6 758 3 580

Total change in working capital 2 302 400

28. Financial assets and liabilities

 Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
 Note 2008 2008 2007 2007

Non-current assets
Available-for-sale investments 14 37 37 35 35
Financial assets with result 
impact entered at current value 19 7 697 7 697
Receivables 15 185 185 211 211

Current assets
Trade and other receivables 18 50 532 50 532 52 334 52 334
Financial assets with result 
impact entered at current value 19 12 156 12 156 
Available-for-sale investments,
liquid assets 20 3 159 3 159
Available-for-sale investments,
cash equivalents 21  33 996 33 996 29 621 29 621
Cash and cash equivalents 21 11 101 11 101 20 414 20 414

Total financial assets  118 864 118 864 102 614 102 614

Non-current financial liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities 25 12 016 12 016

Current financial liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities 25   7 500 7 472
Trade and other payables 26 26 913 26 913 31 116 31 116

Total financial liabilities  38 929 38 929 38 616 38 588

EUR 1,000 2008 2007
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29. Financial risk management

The Group’s treasury operations and financial risks are managed centrally in the parent company based on the principles 
approved by the Board. Subsidiaries are financed through intercompany loans or local bank loans. The goal is cost-efficient 
risk management and optimisation of cash flows.

Currency risk
The Group’s currency risks consist of

- transaction risks related to trade receivables and payables
- translation risks related to foreign subsidiaries
- financial risks related to exchange rate changes

Currency risks are mainly caused by the changes in the USD/EUR exchange rates. Currency risks can be hedged with for-
ward exchange contracts. The parent company is responsible for all hedging measures.
The financial statements at 31 December 2008 do not contain open forward exchange contracts.

Transaction risk 2008

 USD-risk USD-risk EUR-risk EUR-risk EUR-risk
Company’s reporting
currency EUR RMB RMB EEK HUF

Trade receivables  1 700 396 9 364 3 457
Trade payables -334 -1 599 -1 696 -1 278 -368
Balance sheet net risk -334 101 -1 301 8 086 3 088

Transaction risk 2007

 USD-risk USD-risk EUR-risk EUR-risk EUR-risk
Company’s reporting 
currency EUR RMB RMB EEK HUF

Trade receivables 1 2 645 989 4 547 5 050
Trade payables -727 -2 355 -2 580 -1 572 -2 367
Balance sheet net risk -725 290 -1 591 2 975 2 683
     
     
    
There is no significant transaction risk related to USD. A simultaneous weakening of RMB, EEK and HUF by 10% would cause 
a negative effect of approximately EUR 1.2 million.

Translation risk    
As of 31 December 2008, some 2/3 of the Group equity is in EUR, approximately 30% in RMB and the remaining 7% in HUF 
and EEK. A weakening of 10% in the foreign currencies would have a negative effect of some EUR 5 million on the equity. 
This position is not constant, but changes according to the company result and dividends paid. 
Scanfil EMS Oy, has granted loans in euro totalling 8.4 million and including a currency risk to the subsidiaries in Hungary as 
the local currency (HUF) declines in value. The Estonian subsidiary has a loan in EEK equivalent to EUR 12 million to hedge 
against a possible decline in the value of the Estonian kroon.
Investments in foreign subsidiaries have not been hedged.     
    
Financial risk
The changes in exchange rates should not have a significant effect on the long-term competitiveness of the company. 
Pricing is adjusted continuously with most customers and the amount of long-term fixed pricing is not significant.

Interest rate risk
Interest-bearing liabilities and return on financial investments carry an interest rate risk. 
The Group has significant financial assets and the changes in interest rate will affect the Group’s result.
The amount of liabilities with interest is low and does not pose a significant interest rate risk.
The interest rate risk of loans can be controlled with the proportion between variable rate and fixed-interest loans.

Credit risk
The credit risks of trade receivables are the responsibility of business units. The company has no significant risk of credit 
loss. The five biggest customers represent 3/4 of the sales.

Notes to consolidated financial statements
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Age distribution of trade receivables 

Unmatured 41 989 42 327
Matured

  1 - 30 days 5 768 5 666
 31 - 90 days 1 027 1 604
 91 - 180 days 26 237
181 - 365 days 35 496
         over 1 year 15 68

Total 48 860 50 398

The Group has recorded a credit loss of EUR 11,000 during the financial period (EUR 27,000 in 2007).

In accordance with the Group’s investment policy, financial assets will be invested so that half of the assets
are kept in risk-free interest-rate investments (on 31 Dec. 2008, EUR 37.2 million = 65%) approximately a third in low-risk
(Class A companies) investments (on 31 Dec. 2008, EUR 8.7 million = 15%) and approximately a fifth can be invested in
non capital guaranteed moderate risk investments (on 31 Dec. 2008, EUR 11.1 million = 20%). In addition, direct share invest-
ments and strategic investments can be made. The investments include market risk and some counterpart risk.

Liquidity risk
Considering the Group’s balance sheet structure, the liquidity risk is small. The Group’s liquid cash reserve was EUR 45.1 
million on 31 December 2008 (EUR 50.0 million in 2007). The parent company’s treasury operations are responsible for the 
Group’s liquidity. Effective cash management contributes to the management of liquidity.

30. Management of capital structure     
     
With a strong capital structure, the company can ensure normal prerequisites for operations as well as growth opportunities.
The company examines different options for more efficient capital management.    
    
Equity ratio, % 76,1 73,6
Gearing, % -38,4 -31,8

31. Commitments and contingencies

Mortgages to secure own debt 
Mortgages on property 3 447 
Business mortgages 18 832 16 358

Total 22 279 16 358

Liabilities secured with mortgages
Loans from financial institutions 12 015 7 500

Total 12 015 7 500

Guarantees given
On behalf of own company 84 684

Total 84 684

The parent company has given a EUR 6.9 million bank guarantee to secure the payment of contributions related to Scanfil 
NV’s restructuring. Scanfil NV’s balance sheet includes a corresponding provision. 
Scanfil EMS Oy has given a EUR 12.1 million counterobligation as collateral for Scanfil Oü’s bank loan of an equal amount.

32. Other leases

Group as lessee     
Minimum rents payable based on other non-cancellable leases:

Within one year 267 289
In one to five years 223 402
Total 491 691
     

The Group owns nearly all of its production and office premises. Only Scanfil (Suzhou) Co., Ltd is operating in rented 
premises.  Most of its leases are valid until 28 February 2011. There is also a rented space of 2,287 sqm in Hungary until 
11 June 2009.

EUR 1,000 2008 2007
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33. Related party transactions   
    
     Parent
Group companies  Domicile Group’s Share company’s  
   ownership of votes ownership  
 
Scanfil plc, parent company Finland
Scanfil EMS Oy  Finland 100 % 100 % 100 %
Scanfil Kft  Hungary 100 % 100 %
Scanfil Oü  Estonia 100 % 100 % 
Scanfil (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.  China 100 % 100 % 
Scanfil (Hangzhou) Co., Ltd. China 100 % 100 % 
Scanfil NV  Belgium 100 % 100 % 99,99 %
Rozália Invest Kft  Hungary 100 % 100 %

  
Management’s employee benefits
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 

President of the parent company 166 160   
Board of Directors 160 154
Presidents of subsidiaries 386 293
Total 712 608

    
Salaries paid to the President and Board members      
   
Jorma J. Takanen   Chairman of the Board, Group CEO 83 82
Harri Takanen   President 166 74
Veli Torvinen   President untill  14 May 2007  86
Asa-Matti Lyytinen   Board member 23 18
Tuomo Lähdesmäki   Board member 23 18
Reijo Pöllä   Board member 9 18
Jarkko Takanen   Board member 23 18
Total  326 315
     

The company has not had any related party transactions.

Employee incentive schemes

In 2006, Scanfil plc’s Board of Directors decided to reward the Group’s management and key employees through a profit-
sharing scheme.

The members of the Group’s Management Team are covered by a share-based scheme, in which the targets to be met are 
set on an annual basis. The structure of the plan is also approved annually. Half of the bonuses are paid as the company’s 
shares after PAYE, while the other half is transfered to the person’s bonus bank. Transfered shares are set for conveyance 
injunction for a period of one year. Any new bonuses received in the subsequent years are added to the bonus bank and 
half of the total amount is paid as shares after PAYE. When the person’s employment ends, the amount contained in the 
bonus bank is annulled. The number of shares granted is calculated using the share’s closing rate on the day the financial 
statements are released. The shares are issued from treasury shares held by the company.

Based on the results of 2007, 5,303 shares totalling approximately EUR 12,000 were transferred in 2008. Based on the results 
of 2008, it is estimated that approximately 12,000 shares totalling EUR 24,000 will be transferred.

Other key employees of the Group are included in a cash-based scheme, in which bonuses are based on individual perform-
ance targets. In addition, a bonus based on the performance of the plant can be paid to plant workers.
In 2008, profit-related bonuses amounted to approximately EUR 0.5 million.
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Financial indicators

      
        

Key financial indicators 2008 2007 2006 2005  2004
 

Turnover, EUR m 218,9 224,6 241,4 321,6 313,4 
Turnover, growth from previous year, % -2.5 -7.0 -24.9 2.6 13.9 
Operating profit, EUR m 21,1 18,6 11,4 27,3 28,2 
Operating profit, % of turnover 9.7 8.3 4.7 8.5 9.0 
Earnings before extraordinary items and taxes, EUR m 19,4 19,0 12,1 26,8 28,1 
Earnings before extraordinary items and taxes, % of turnover 8.9 8.5 5.0 8.3 9.0 
Earnings before taxes, EUR m 19,4 19,0 12,1 26,8 28,1 
Earnings before taxes, % of turnover 8.9 8.5 5.0 8.3 9.0 
Profit/loss for the period, EUR m 15,6 14,1 8,2 21,5 21,8
      
Non-current assets, EUR m 46,4 40,8 47,4 60,8 60,8 
Inventories, EUR m 30,2 33,6 41,4 40,8 41,4 
Receivables, EUR m 50,6 52,3 43,1 58,2 70,1 
Liquid cash assets, EUR m 60,4 50,0 31,8 37,8 34,5 
Non-current assets held for sale 4,6 4,6 10,0   
Share capital, EUR m 15,2 15,2 15,2 15,2 15,2 
Other equity, EUR m 131,0 118,4 112,2 115,9 104,3 
Minority interest, EUR m     3,4 
Provisions, EUR m 6,0 6,9 8,5 5,3 5,8 
Long-term liabilities, EUR m 13,1 2,3 8,9 19,6 20,0 
Short-term liabilities, EUR m 26,9 38,7 28,8 41,7 58,3 
Balance sheet total, EUR m 192,2 181,5 173,6 197,7 206,9 
       
Return on equity, % 11.2 10.8 6.4 17.0 18.4 
Return on investment, % 13.7 14.1 9.0 18.6 19.8 
Interest-bearing liabilities, EUR m 12,0 7,5 7,5 17,9 25,4 
Gearing, % -38.4 -31.8 -19.1 -15.2 -7.5 
Equity ratio, % 76.1 73.6 73.6 66.5 59.4 
Gross investments in fixed assets, EUR m 3,9 1,4 8,5 9,2 6,7 
Gross investments in fixed assets, % of turnover 1.8 0.6 3.5 2.9 2.1 
Average number of employees for the period 2,132 2,105 2,213 2,354 2,115 
       
Key indicators per share      
Earnings per share, EUR 0.27 0.24 0.14 0.36 0.35 
Shareholders’ equity per share, EUR 2.50 2.27 2.17 2.19 1.97 
Dividend per share, EUR 0.12 0.12 0.10 0.10 0.18 
Dividend per earnings, % 45.0 49.8 72.4 28.1 50.7 
Effective dividend yield, % 5.91 6.15 4.22 2.28 3.93 
Price-to-earnings ratio (P/E) 7.62 8.1 17.2 12.3 12.9 
       
Share trading       
No. of shares traded, thousands 6,066 8,947 20,401 14,184 17,410 
Percentage of total shares, % 10.0 14.7 33.6 23.4 28.7 
       
Share performance       
Lowest price for year, EUR 1.76 1.92 2.30 3.40 4.41 
Highest price for year, EUR 2.45 2.49 4.67 4.89 6.44 
Average price for year, EUR 2.07 2.19 3.47 4.19 5.28 
Price at the end of year, EUR 2.03 1.95 2.37 4.38 4.58 
Market value of share capital at 31 Dec., EUR m 123,2 118,4 143,9 265,9 281,1 
Share-issue adjusted number of shares       
At the end of the period, thousands 58,443 58,716 58,714 59,714 60,714 
On average during the period, thousands 58,696 58,716 59,557 60,441 60,714
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CALCULATION OF KEY INDICATORS        
        
        

Return on equity, % (Earnings before extraordinary items - taxes) x 100
 Shareholders’ equity (average)        

Return on investment, % (Earnings before extraordinary items + interest and other financial expenses) x 100 
 Balance sheet total - non-interest-bearing liabilities (average)    

   
Gearing (%) (Interest-bearing liabilities - cash and other liquid financial assets) x 100
 Shareholders’ equity

Equity ratio (%) Shareholders’ equity x 100 
 Balance sheet total - advance payments received     

  
Earnings per share Earnings before extraordinary items - taxes
 Average adjusted number of shares during the year

Shareholders’ equity per share Shareholders’ equity
 Adjusted number of shares at the end of the financial period    

   
Dividend per share Dividend to be distributed for the period (Board’s proposal)
 Number of shares at the end of year

Dividend per earnings (%) Dividend per share x 100 
 Earnings per share

Effective dividend yield (%) Dividend per share x 100 
 Share price at the end of year

Price-to-earnings ratio (P/E) Share price at the end of year
 Earnings per share

Average share price Total share turnover
 Number of shares traded
       
Market capitalisation Number of shares x last trading price of the financial period

Financial indicators
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PARENT COMPANY
     
     
     
EUR 1,000 Note 1.1.-31.12.2008  1.1.-31.12.2007

     
TURNOVER 1 40 731  108 745   

  
Changes in inventories of finished goods     
and work in progress  -485  -316
Other operating income 2 1 851  2 020 
     
Raw materials and services 3 -27 628  -74 465
Employee benefit expenses 4 -7 041  -20 845
Depreciation and amortisation expense 5 -1 443  -3 410
Other operating expenses 6 -2 044  -4 539
     
OPERATING PROFIT  3 940  7 190 
     
Financial income 8 9 155  12 243 
Financial expenses 8 -3 499  -1 498 
     
PROFIT BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS  9 596  17 936 
APPROPRIATIONS AND TAXES     
     
Appropriations 5 606  734 
     
Income taxes 9 -819  -2 258 
     
NET PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD  9 383  16 412 
     

Profit and loss statement FAS
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Balance sheet FAS

PARENT COMPANY    

    
    
EUR 1,000                                                              Note 31.12.2008  31.12.2007
    

ASSETS

FIXED ASSETS    
    
Intangible assets 10   
Intangible rights  2  386
Other long-term expenses    135
  2  521
    
Tangible assets 11   
Land  1 341  1 041
Buildings and structures  11 110  11 937
Machinery and equipment    3 903
Other tangible assets  67  95
Advance payments and construction in progress    4
  12 518  16 979
    
Investments   
Holdings in Group companies 12 79 471  39 801
Other shares and holdings 13 37  35
Other receivables 14 7 677  261
  87 185  40 097
    
TOTAL FIXED ASSETS  99 705  57 597
    
CURRENT ASSETS    
    
Inventories 15   16 350
    
Long-term receivables     
Deferred tax assets 16 802  67
Receivables from Group companies 17   6 700
Other loan receivables  235
  1 037  6 767   

 
Short-term receivables   
Trade receivables    23 291
Receivables from Group companies 17 607  12 327
Loans receivable  25
Other receivables 14 12 026  3
Accrued income  191  362
  12 848  35 984
    
    
Cash and cash equivalents 18 15 127  32 087
    
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  29 013  91 188
    
TOTAL ASSETS  128 717  148 785



Scanfil plc FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2008   31

Balance sheet FAS

    
    
    
    
EUR 1,000                                                 Note 31.12.2008  31.12.2007   

 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY 19   
    
Share capital  15 179  15 179
Share premium account  16 089  16 089
Retained earnings  75 486  66 683
Profit for the period  9 383  16 412
    
TOTAL SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY  116 137  114 363
    
ACCRUED APPROPRIATIONS    
    
Depreciation difference 20 3 362  3 788

MANDATORY RESERVES 21   256
    
LIABILITIES    
    
Short-term   
Loans from financial institutions    7 500
Advances received 22 7  1
Trade payables  23  8 222
Liabilities to Group companies 23 8 341  9 958
Other creditors  54  622
Accrued liabilities 23 793  4 075
  9 218  30 377
  
TOTAL LIABILITIES  9 218  30 377

    
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  128 717  148 785
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 PARENT COMPANY    
    

EUR 1,000 Note 2008  2007
    

Cash flow from operating activities     
Profit for the period  9 383  16 412
Adjustments 24 -4 141  -6 504
Change in working capital 24 4 817  -1 013
Interest paid  -465  -679
Interest received  2 185  1 369
Taxes paid  -1 464  -2 363
Net cash flow from operating activities  10 315  7 224
    
Cash flow from investing activities    
Investments in tangible and intangible assets  -290  -346
Proceeds from sale of tangible and intangible assets  191  2 476
Investments to other investments  -22 789  
Repayment of loans receivable  5 000  
Proceeds from sale of other investments    240
Acquired subsidiaries  -1 116  -358
Dissolved subsidiaries    2 451
Dividend received from investments  7 116  8 864
Net cash flow from investing activities  -11 888  -13 327
    
Cash flow from financing activities    
Acquisition of own shares  -540  
Short-term loans raised  900  8 000 
Repayment of short-term loans  -8 200  -2 510
Dividends paid  -7 047  -5 872
Net cash flow from financing activities  -14  888  -382
    
Change in cash and cash equivalents  -16 460  20 169
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Jan.  32 087  12 268
Change in fair value of marketable securities    -350
Business transfer, cash  -500
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 Dec. 18 15 127  32 087

Cash flow statement FAS
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EUR 1,000 2008 2007

1. Turnover by location of customers
     
Finland 31 232 80 634   
Rest of Europe 7 141 18 513   
Asia 1 737 8 762   
USA 520 630   
Other 101 206   
Total 40 731 108 745   

    
2. Other operating income
 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 146 614   
Rental income 1 171 84   
Expenses invoiced from Group companies 513 1 194   
Grants 7 37   
Other 14 92   
Total 1 851 2 020   

3. Materials and services
   
Materials and supplies    

Purchases during the period 25 450 69 966
Change in inventories 731 1 353   

  26 182 71 319 
External services 1 447 3 146   
Total 27 628 74 465

4. Employee expenses
   
Salaries, wages and fees 5 663 16 701
Indirect employee expenses

Pension costs 935 2 818   
Other indirect employee expenses 443 1 326 

Total 7 041 20 845

The pension costs are based on defined-contribution schemes. The company does not have outstanding stock options.

Notes to Parent company’s financial statement

PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES    

Scanfil plc is a Finland-based public limited company domiciled in Sievi.  The financial statements of Scanfil plc have been 
prepared in accordance with the Finnish Accounting Act and other regulations in force in Finland (FAS).
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the IFRS.  The parent company’s financial statements 
comply with IFRS principles wherever possible. With regard to Scanfil plc, the mainly Finnish accounting practice and IFRS-
compliant accounting policies are congruent with each other, so the key accounting policies can be read from the account-
ing policies for consolidated financial statements.
The most significant differences between the parent company’s and the Group’s accounting policies concern the following:

Parent company goodwill
The parent company’s goodwill is amortised according to plan.  The amortisation period is five years.  The goodwill was
fully amortised in 2005.

Non-current assets
Non-current assets classified as held for sale are included in fixed assets, and their depreciation
will continue normally.
Depreciation periods for fixed assets are:
     Buildings and structures  25 years
     Machinery and equipment  3 - 8 years
     Other tangible assets   5 - 10 years
     Intangible assets   5 years         

Securities and other investments
Investments are valued at the lower of cost and probable realisable value.

Comparability of figures; business transfer
In the business transfer on 1 May 2008, Scanfil plc was split into an investment company, Scanfil plc, and a subgroup called 
Scanfil EMS Oy, which engages in contract manufacturing. 
In the business transfer, all contract manufacturing assets, liabilities and provisions of Scanfil plc were transfered to Scanfil 
EMS Oy at book values. All immaterial rights, machinery and equipment, the shares of the subsidiaries in China, Hungary 
and Estonia, inventories as well as short-term receivables and liabilities, excluding those related to the operation of Scanfil 
NV, were transfered to Scanfil EMS Oy. Facilities owned by Scanfil plc and assets that are not a part of its primary opera-
tions, mainly financial assets, as well as the shares of the subsidiary Scanfil NV, remained with Scanfil plc. Scanfil NV has not 
engaged in any production activities since 2006.

The figures for 2008 include the contract manufacturing operations in Finland only for the first four moths.

FAS
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Average number of employees during the period
   
Clerical employees 38 120   
Employees 141 450   
Total 179 570    
 
Management’s employee benefits are reported in note 26.     

5. Depreciation, amortisation and impairment   

Depreciation and amortisation by asset class 

Intangible assets
Intangible rights 40 119
Other long-term expenses 18 71
Total 59 190
    
Tangible assets    
Buildings 826 1 015  
Machinery and equipment 529 2 173  
Other tangible assets 28 33  
Total 1 384 3 221

Change in depreciation difference
Intangible rights  2
Buildings and structures 224 3
Machinery and equipment 379 733
Other tangible assets 3 -3  
Total 606 734

    
6. Other operating expenses
   
Other operating expenses include the following significant
expense items:     
  
Sales freight 188 703  
Other variable expenses 469 1 322   
Rent and maintenance expenses 458 812   
Travel, marketing and vehicle expenses 149 455   
Other employee expenses 86 236   
Other operating expenses 693 1 011  
Total 2 044 4 539    
     

7. Auditor’s remuneration, parent company and Scanfil EMS Oy

Auditor’s remunerations of the Chartered Accountants 28 27
Tax consulting 3 3
Other remuneration 2
Yhteensä 33 30

     
8. Financial income and expenses

Dividend income    
From Group companies 7 115 8 863   
Other 1 1
Total 7 116 8 864   

Proceeds from long-term investments    
From Group companies   1 732

Capital gains and losses from available-for-sale investments    
Capital gains  167   

Interest income    
From Group companies 262 596
Other 1 773 619
Total 2 035 1 215    

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

Notes to Parent company’s financial statement FAS
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Capital gains and losses from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss   536  

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss -3 084 -350

Impairment of investments in fixed assets
Investments in Group companies  -600

Interest expense    
To Group companies -370 -266  
Other -7 -299  
Total -377 -564

Other financial expenses
Other -35 -38

Exchange rate gains and losses    
Exchange rate gains 4 79
Exchange rate losses -3 -296
Total 1 -217    
   
Total financial income and expenses 5 656 10 746

9. Income taxes  
    
Current tax 1 621 2 374  
Change in deferred tax liabilities -802 -116  
Total 819 2 258 
  

10. Intangible assets 2008

  Other Intangible
 Intangible long-term assets
 rights expenses total

Acquisition cost 1 Jan. 1 644 432 2 077
Additions 13  13
Deductions -1 641 -432 -2 074

Acquisition cost 31 Dec. 16 0 16
 
Accumulated depreciations 1 Jan. -1 259 -297 -1 556

Depreciations -40 -18 -59
Deductions 1 285 316 1 601

Accumulated depreciations 31 Dec. -14 0 -14

Carrying amount 31 Dec. 2 0 2

10. Intangible assets 2007

  Other Intangible
 Intangible long-term assets
 rights expenses total

Acquisition cost 1 Jan. 1 248 432 1 680
Additions 398  398
 Deductions -1  -1

Acquisition cost 31 Dec. 1 644 432 2 077
 
Accumulated depreciations 1 Jan. -1 141 -226 -1 368

Depreciations -119 -71 -190
Deductions 1  1

Accumulated depreciations 31 Dec. -1 259 -297 -1 556

Carrying amount 31 Dec. 389 135 521 

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

Notes to Parent company’s financial statement FAS
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11.  Tangible assets 2008

     Advance
    Other payments and Tangible
  Buildings and Machinery and tangible constructions assets
 Land constructions equipments assets in progress total        
     
Acquisition cost 1 Jan. 1 041 19 203 31 828 528 4 52 604

Additions 308  210   518
Deductions -8  -32 038  -4 -32 051

Acquisition cost 31 Dec. 1 341 19 203 0 528 0 21 072

Accumulated depreciations 1 Jan.  -7 266 -27 926 -433  -35 625
Depreciations  -826 -529 -28  -1 384
Deductions   28 455   28 455

Accumulated depreciations 31 Dec. -8 092 0 -462  -8 554

Carrying amount 31 Dec. 1 341 11 110 0 67 0 12 518

The value of land includes connection fees EUR 167,397

11.  Tangible assets 2007

     Advance
    Other payments and Tangible
  Buildings and Machinery and tangible constructions assets
 Land constructions equipments assets in progress total

Acquisition cost 1 Jan. 1 195 22 531 33 371 555 527 58 179
Additions   310 -27 81 364
Deductions -154 -3 328 -1 853  -604 -5 938

Acquisition cost 31 Dec. 1 041 19 203 31 828 528 4 52 604

Accumulated depreciations 1 Jan.  -8 010 -27 510 -425  -35 945
Depreciations  -1 015 -2 173 -33  -3 221
Deductions  1 758 1 758 24  3 540

Accumulated depreciations 31 Dec. -7 266 -27 926 -433  -35 625

Carrying amount 31 Dec. 1 041 11 937 3 903 95 4 16 979

The value of land includes connection fees EUR 175,805
Undepreciated acquisition cost of production machinery and equipments EUR 3,571,361

12. Investments 2008 2007

Shares in Group companies
Cost at 1 Jan. 39 801 40 762

Additions 78 733 358
Deductions -39 062 -719
Impairment    -600

Cost at 31 Dec. 79 471 39 801
Carrying amount 31 Dec. 79 471 39 801

Group companies Domicile Group Parent  Parent 
   share company company

Scanfil NV Belgium 100% 99,99% 1 850
Scanfil EMS Oy Finland 100% 100% 77 621
     79 471

13. Other shares and holdings 2008 2007

Cost at 1 Jan. 35 108
Additions 2
Deductions  -73

Cost at 31 Dec. 37 35
Carrying amount 31 Dec. 37 35

Available-for-sale investments consist of telephone and golf shares.

EUR 1,000 

Notes to Parent company’s financial statement FAS
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14. Other receivables

Long term
Subordinated loan   261
Marketable securities

Acquisition cost 8 981
Change in fair value -1 304

Carrying amount at 31 Dec. 7 677 261

Short term
Advance payments   3
Marketable securities

Acquisition cost 13 806
Change in fair value -1 780

Carrying amount at 31 Dec. 12 026 3

Financial assets recorded during the period for change in fair value consist mainly of bonds, index loans and certificate of 
deposits and commercial papers.
The subordinated loan, originally granted in 2001, was changed to debt evidenced by certificates with normal terms and 
conditions on 13 June 2008 as allowed by the company’s shareholder’s equity. 
A new payment schedule has been calculated for the loan.

15. Inventories

Materials and supplies  10 536
Work in progress  4 097
Finished goods  1 717
Total  16 350

16. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets
Provisions  67
Remeasurement at fair value 802
Total 802 67

17. Receivables from Group companies

Long term 
Loan receivables  6 700

Short term
Trade payables  3 873
Loan receivables  8 000
Other receivables 548 6
Accrued income 59 448

Total 607 12 327

18. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances 15 127 32 087
Total 15 127 32 087

19. Shareholders’ equity

Share capital
Share capital at 1 Jan. 15 179 15 179

Share capital at 31 Dec. 15 179 15 179

Share premium account
Share premium account at 1 Jan. 16 089 16 089

Share premium account at 31 Dec. 16 089 16 089

Retained earnings
Retained earnings at 1 Jan. 83 096 72 551
Dividends -7 057 -5 874
Acquistion/distribution of company’s own shares -552 6

Retained earnings at 31 Dec. 75 486 66 683

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

Notes to Parent company’s financial statement FAS
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Profit for the period 9 383 16 412

Unrestricted shareholders’ equity at 31 Dec. 84 870 83 096

Shareholders’ equity at 31 Dec. 116 137 114 363

Calculation of distributable funds at 31 Dec.
Retained earnings 75 486 66 683
Profit for the period 9 383 16 412

Total 84 870 83 096

Shares and share capital
Scanfil plc has a total of 60,714,270 shares. The company’s registered share capital is EUR 15,178,567.50.
The company has one series of shares, and all shares belong to the same class. Each share entitles the holder to one vote 
and the equal right to receive dividends. 
Scanfil plc’s shares are quoted on NASDAQ OMX Helsinki Oy. The shares have been publicly traded  since 24 May 2000. The 
trading code of the shares is SCF1V. The shares are included in the book-entry system maintained by the Finnish Central 
Securities Depository Ltd.

Own shares and authorisations of the Board of Directors
On 31 December 2008, the company owned a total of 2,271,192 of its own shares representing 3.7% of the company’s share 
capital and votes.
The Annual General Meeting held on 3 April 2008 decided to extend by 18 moths the term of validity of the authorisation to 
acquire treasure shares decided by the previous Annual General Meeting held on 12 April 2007. The authorisation applies to 
the acquisition of a maximum of 4,000,000 treasury shares.
In the financial period 2008, a total of 278,046 treasury share were acquired. The acquisition price of these shares was EUR 
572,262.35 and the average price EUR 2.06/share. The shares were acquired between 10 November and 31 December 2008 
through NASDAQ OMX  Helsinki Oy.

The Board of Directors has no existing share issue authorisations or authorisations to issue convertible bonds or
bonds with warrants.

Dividend
After the closing of the accounts, the Board of Directors has proposed a dividend of EUR 0.09/share and an additional divi-
dend of EUR 0.03/share be paid.

20. Depreciation difference by balance sheet item at the end of the period

Accumulated depreciation difference, intangible rights
Accumulated depreciation difference, buildings 3 346 3 570
Accumulated depreciation difference, machinery and equipment  199
Accumulated depreciation difference, other tangible assets 16 19
Total 3 362 3 788

21. Provisions

Provisions at 1 Jan. 256 161
Additions to provisions  95
Reversal of unused provisions -256
Provisions at 31 Dec. 0 256

The provision for unemployment pension deductibles of employees made redundant as a result of employer/employee 
negotiations was cancelled because it was not used.

22. Interest-bearing liabilities

Short-term
Loans from financial institutions  7 500
Liabilities to Group companies 8 200 8 000
Total 8 200 15 500

Long-term liabilities fall due as follows:

Year 2008  15 500
Year 2009 8 200
Total 8 200 15 500

Loans are in euros

The weighted average interest rates of interest-bearing long-term liabilities were as follows:

Bank loans including interest rate swaps  3,92%
Other
Liabilities to Group companies 4,75% 4,00%

EUR 1,000 2008 2007
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23. Short-term liabilities

Liabilities to Group companies
Loans 7 300 8 000
Liquid assets of the Group account 900
Trade payables 5 1 863
Accrued liabilities and other short-term liabilities   136 95

Total 8 341 9 958

The most significant items included in accrued liabilities
Employee expenses 69 3 381
Direct taxes 451 294
Interests   144
Other accrued liabilities 274 256

Total 793 4 075

24. Cash flow statement adjustments
 
Non-cash transactions

Depreciation according to plan 1 443 3 410
Financial income and expenses -5 656 -10 746
Taxes 819 2 258
Changes in provisions -606 -639
Other adjustments -141 -787

Total -4 141 -6 504

Changes in working capital
Inc(-)/dec(+) in short-term non-interest-bearing receivables  -29 -919
Inc(-)/dec(+) in inventories 1 217 1 669
Inc(+)/dec(-) in short-term non-interest-bearing liabilities 3 629 -1 763

Total change in working capital 4 817 -1 013

 
25. Commitments and contingencies

General collateral mortgages given 
Mortgages on property 3 447
Business mortgages 6 832 16 358

Total 10 279 16 358

Liabilities secured with mortgages
Loans from financial institutions  7 500

Guarantees given
On behalf of parent company 84 84
On behalf of Group companies 6 895 8 379

Total 6 979 8 463

The parent company has given a EUR 6.9 million bank guarantee to secure the payment of contributions related to Scanfil 
NV’s restructuring. Scanfil NV’s balance sheet includes a corresponding provision. 

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

Notes to Parent company’s financial statement FAS
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26. Management’s employee benefits

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits
President of the parent company  166 160
Board of Directors  160 154
Total 326 315

Harri Takanen works as a President in both Scanfil plc and Scanfil EMS Oy.  Scanfil plc has paid the President’s salary between 
1 Jan. and 30 April 2008, and since 1 May Scanfil EMS Oy.

Salaries paid to the President and Board members

Jorma J. Takanen  Chairman of the Board, Group CEO 83 82
Harri Takanen President 166 74
Veli Torvinen President until  14 May 2007  86
Asa-Matti Lyytinen Board member 23 18
Tuomo Lähdesmäki Board member 23 18
Reijo Pöllä  Board member 9 18
Jarkko Takanen Board member 23 18
Total  326 315

The company has not had any related party transactions.

27. Information on shares and shareholders

On 31 December 2008, Scanfil plc had a total of 3,776 shareholders, 39.12 % of whom owned a maximum of 200 shares in the 
company. The ten major shareholders owned 74.19 % of the shares. Nominee-registered shares accounted for 4.48 %.

Breakdown of share ownership

Breakdown of share ownership by number of shares held at 31 Dec. 2008

       
  Number of  Percentage        Shares    Shares
  shareholders  of shares       and votes   and votes
 Number of shares pcs % pcs %

 1 - 200 1 477 39.12 250 359 0.41
 201 - 1000 1 328 35.17 792 348 1.31
 1001 - 2000 384 10.17 618 323 1.02
 2001 - 10000 444 11.76 2 002 973 3.30
 10001 - 100000 115 3.05 3 201 335 5.27
 100001 - 99999999 28 0.74 53 848 932 88.69

 Total 3 776 100.00 60 714 270 100.00

EUR 1,000 2008 2007

Notes to Parent company’s financial statement FAS
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Breakdown of share ownership by owner category at 31 Dec. 2008

 
 Number of  Number 
 shareholders Share of shares Share
 pcs % pcs %
Corporations 239 6.33 3 773 984 6.22
Financial and insurance institutions 17 0.45 4 002 319 6.59
Public entities 4 0.11 1 232 000 2.03
Non-profit-making organisations 11 0.29 2 128 385 3.51
Households 3 494 92.53 49 285 264 81.18
Non-Finnish owners 11 0.29 292 318 0.48
Total 3 776 100.00 60 714 270 100.00

of which nominee-registered 8  2 722 208 4.48

Information on shareholders

Major shareholders at 31 Dec. 2008

  % of shares
 pcs and votes
1.  Takanen Jorma J. 17 596 305 28.98
2.  Kotilainen Eero 7 273 109 11.98
3.  Takanen Harri 3 851 589 6.34
4.  Takanen Jonna 3  251 950 5.36
5.  Pöllä Reijo 3 126 444 5.15
6.  Takanen Jarkko 2 477 169 4.08
7.  Scanfil Oyj 2 255 392 3.71
8.  Takanen Martti 1 954 218 3.22
9.  Riitta ja Jorma J. Takasen säätiö 1 900 000 3.13
10.  Nordea Pankki Suomi Oyj 1 358 361 2.24

Shares held by management
On 31 December 2008, the members of the Board of Directors and the President of Scanfil plc owned a total of 27,065,507 
shares, which accounts for 44.6 % of the company’s shares and votes.

28. Dividend distribution policy
The company aims to pay dividend annually. The amount of dividends paid and the date of payment are affected by, among 
other things, the Group’s performance, financial position, need for capital and other potential factors. 
The aim is to distribute approximately one-third of the Group’s annual profit as dividend to shareholders.

29. Share price development, trading and market value
In 2008, the number of Scanfil plc shares traded in NASDAQ OMX Helsinki Oy was 6,066,337, which accounts for 10 % of all 
shares. The value of shares traded was EUR 12,6 million and the average price EUR 2.07. At the end of 2008, the market value 
of the shares was EUR 123,2 million. The highest trading price was EUR 2.45 and the lowest EUR 1.76.
The closing price was EUR 2.03.

Notes to Parent company’s financial statement
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 BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROPOSAL FOR THE DISTRIBUTION OF PROFIT

The parent company’s distributable funds total EUR 84,869,701.67

The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meeting that a dividend of EUR 0.12 per share be paid for the finan-
cial period ended 31 December 2008.

SIGNATURES TO THE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sievi, 12 February 2009

Jorma J. Takanen Asa-Matti Lyytinen
Chairman of the Board

Reijo Pöllä Jarkko Takanen

Tuomo Lähdesmäki Harri Takanen
 President

Board of Directors proposal for the distribution of profit

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Annual General Meeting of Scanfil plc 

We have audited the accounting records, the financial statements, the report of the Board of Directors, and the adminis-
tration of Scanfil plc for the year ended on December 31, 2008. The financial statements comprise the consolidated 
balance sheet, income statement, cash flow statement, statement of changes in equity and notes to the consolidated 
financial statements, as well as the parent company’s balance sheet, income statement, cash flow statement and notes to 
the financial statements.

The Responsibility of the Board of Directors and the President
The Board of Directors and the President are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and the report of 
the Board of Directors and for the fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Inter-
national Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU, as well as for the fair presentation of the parent com-
pany’s financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors in accordance with laws and regulations governing 
the preparation of the financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors in Finland. The Board of Directors is 
responsible for the appropriate arrangement of the control of the company’s accounts and finances, and the President 
shall see to it that the accounts of the company are in compliance with the law and that its financial affairs have been ar-
ranged in a reliable manner.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to perform an audit in accordance with good auditing practice in Finland, and to express an opinion 
on the parent company’s financial statements, on the consolidated financial statements and on the report of the Board of 
Directors based on our audit. Good auditing practice requires that we comply with professional ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements and the report of the Board 
of Directors are free from material misstatement and whether the members of the Board of Directors of the parent com-
pany and the President have complied with the Limited Liability Companies Act.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements and the report of the Board of Directors. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, includ-
ing the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presen-
tation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements and the report of the 
Board of Directors.

The audit has been performed in accordance with good auditing practice in Finland. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial perform-
ance, and cash flows of the group in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the 
EU.

Opinion on the Company’s Financial Statements and the Report of the Board of Directors
In our opinion, the financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors give a true and fair view of both the con-
solidated and the parent company’s financial performance and financial position in accordance with the laws and regula-
tions governing the preparation of the financial statements and the report of the Board of Directors in Finland. 
The information in the report of the Board of Directors is consistent with the information in the financial statements.

Helsinki, February 26, 2009

KPMG OY AB

Ari Ahti




